(6/30/94) Lettension 6/30/97

# AGREEMENT

# Between

# IRON COUNTY MEDICAL CARE FACILITY

And

# MICHIGAN COUNCIL OF NURSES & HEALTH CARE PROFESSIONALS, SEIU, LOCAL 79, AFL-CIO

October 1, 1992 - June 30, 1994

LABOR AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS COLLECTION Michigan State University

1 2911

ounty ? medual Care Ta

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

AGREEMENT	1
ARTICLE I - PURPOSE AND INTENT	1
ARTICLE II - RECOGNITION OF THE LPN/GPN	1
ARTICLE III - RECOGNITION OF THE FACILITY'S RIGHT TO MANAGE .	1
ARTICLE IV - RECOGNITION OF THE ASSOCIATION	2 2
ARTICLE V - SENIORITY Section 1 - Definition Section 2 - Seniority List Section 3 - Probationary LPN/GPN Section 4 - Seniority Status Section 5 - Seniority Computation Section 6 - Loss of Seniority Section 7 - Seniority Layoffs Section 8 - Seniority - Recall from Layoff Section 9 - Seniority - Charge LPN	3 3 3
ARTICLE VI - HOURS OF WORK AND WAGE RATES	5 5 7
Section 5- Retirement IncomeSection 6- Court DutySection 7- Workers CompensationSection 8- Health, Dental & Optical InsuranceSection 9- Shift PremiumSection 10- Additional CompensationSection 11- Vacations	.7 8 9 10 11 11 11 11 13 13 13
Section 12 - Leave of Absence	15

Section 13 - Funeral Leave	16
Section 14 - Uniform Allowance	16
Section 15 - Overtime	16
Section 16 - Physical Examinations	16
Section 17 - Employee Meals	17
ARTICLE VIII - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	17
Section 1 - Definition of a Grievance	17
Section 2 - Rules of Grievance Procedure	17
Section 3 - Grievance Procedure	18
ARTICLE IX - MISCELLANEOUS	19
Section 1 - Strikes - Work Interruptions	19
Section 2 - Bulletin Boards	19
Section 3 - Pronouns - Use of	19
	19
Section 4 - Successor Clause	
Section 5 - Disciplinary Action, Discharge, Suspension	20
Section 6 - Disciplinary Action, Discharge, Suspension	20
Section 7 - Anti-Discrimination	20
Section 8 - Discharge	20
Section 9 - Resignation	20
Section 10 - Meetings	21
Section 11 - Work Schedule	21
Section 12 - Workshop	21
ARTICLE X - NEGOTIATIONS PROCEDURES	21
ARTICLE XI - TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION	22
ANTICLE AT TRANSMINATION AND WOLDFILATION	22

# AGREEMENT

This Agreement, made this 1st day of October, 1992, by and between Iron County Medical Care Facility, Crystal Falls, Michigan, hereinafter referred to as the Facility or the Employer and the Michigan Council of Nurses & Health Care Professionals, SEIU, Local 79, AFL-CIO, hereinafter referred to as the Union.

### ARTICLE I - PURPOSE AND INTENT

It is agreed the Facility must provide services to the public on a continuing basis without obstruction by disputes between the Facility and its employees. It is for this reason that the parties enter into this Agreement and by doing so set forth rates of pay, wages, hours and conditions of employment to be observed by both parties. This Agreement further provides for the adjustment of grievance(s).

# ARTICLE II - RECOGNITION OF THE LPN/GPN

It is recognized by both parties that the LPN/GPN is responsible for high quality nursing care under the direction of an RN. The LPN/GPN shall be classified apart from non-licensed auxiliary nursing personnel (i.e. Aide, Orderlies, Ward Clerks) and have the responsibility and authority to direct such personnel. The LPN/GPN shall at all times present and conduct himself in a Professional Manner.

# ARTICLE III - RECOGNITION OF THE FACILITY'S RIGHT TO MANAGE

The Union recognizes and agrees that the Facility retains the sole right to manage and operate the Facility in all respects to matters in connection with the exercise of such right, subject only to the Union right to grieve if action taken by the Facility may reasonably and sensibly be claimed to be contrary to a specific limitation of its right. An employee covered by this Agreement shall immediately proceed to carry out any order or instruction given him by the Facility (unless his doing so would obviously jeopardize the health or safety of himself or others). He shall raise any questions he has as to the Facility's right to give him the order or instruction, only after he carries out the order or instruction, and his question must be on a reasonable and sensible reading of a specific provision or specific provisions of the Agreement.

This Agreement supersedes any past practice(s) agreement(s), verbal or written, between or among any of the parties hereto and any employee(s) covered hereby which is in conflict in any way with specific provisions of this Agreement.

# ARTICLE IV - RECOGNITION OF THE ASSOCIATION

#### Section 1 - Definition of the Bargaining Unit

A. Pursuant to and in accordance with all applicable provisions of Act 336, Public Acts of Michigan, 1947, as amended by Act 379, Public Acts of Michigan, 1969, the Facility recognizes the Union as the exclusive bargaining representative for the purpose of collective bargaining in respect to rates of pay, wages, hours of employment, and other conditions of employment for the term of this Agreement of all LPN/GPNs employed by the Facility.

### Section 2 - Maintenance of Membership and Agency

- A. Employees covered by this Agreement, at the time it becomes effective and who are members of the Union at that time, shall be required, as a condition of continued employment, to continue in the Union or pay a service fee to the Union equal to dues uniformly charged to members for the duration of the Agreement.
- B. Employees covered by this Agreement, who are not members of the Union at the time it becomes effective, shall be required as a condition of continued employment to become members of the Union or pay a service fee equal to the dues required for membership, commencing thirty (30) days after the effective date of this Agreement and such conditions shall be required for the duration of this Agreement.
- C. LPN/GPNs hired, rehired, reinstated or transferred, after the effective date of this Agreement shall be required as a condition of continued employment to become members of the Union or pay a service fee equal to the dues required for membership for the duration of this Agreement commencing the thirtieth (30th) working day following their date of hire.

#### Section 3 - Check Off

The Facility agrees to deduct service fees or dues from the pay of any employee covered by this Agreement upon presentation of a signed payroll deduction card by the Union for each employee. Such deduction shall be remitted to the Union within five (5) days following such payroll deduction.

### Section 4 - Visits of Union Representatives

The Facility agrees that representatives of the Union Program Board, whether local district, council or State shall have access to the premises to conduct Union business, upon notifying the Facility Administrator of the date and time.

# ARTICLE V - SENIORITY

#### Section 1 - Definition

An employee covered by this Agreement, who has completed the probationary period shall have seniority as of such last day of hire. Seniority shall be applied only as specifically set forth in the Agreement.

#### Section 2 - Seniority List

The Facility will keep the seniority list up to date and post the list on the Union bulletin board as well as provide the Union Secretary with a revised list each six (6) months following the date of initial posting. It shall be the responsibility of each employee covered by this Agreement to check the original list and each such revised list and to notify the Administrator in writing of any alleged error in seniority. The employee and the Administrator shall mutually try to settle any questions as to the correctness of the posted seniority. The Administrator shall notify the Union Secretary promptly and in writing of any corrections made in the employees seniority. If the question is not settled the employee may refer to Step 2 of the grievance procedure. If the employee does not do so within five (5) days following discussion, with the Administrator, his seniority shall be deemed to be correct as posted.

#### Section 3 - Probationary LPN/GPN

An LPN/GPN shall be considered to be on probation and shall not be entitled to any seniority until he has completed thirty (30) working days of regularly scheduled employment (either full-time or part-time) after his last day of hire. Any LPN/GPN who is discharged by the Facility during the probationary period and is later rehired shall begin the probationary period as of the date of rehire. The Facility shall have no obligation to reemploy an LPN/GPN who is laid off or discharged during probationary period. The Facility shall have the right to discharge a probationary employee for or without cause and without respect to seniority.

#### Section 4 - Seniority Status

Upon completion of the probationary period the LPN/GPN shall be placed on the seniority list as of the last date of hire. When two or more employees covered by this Agreement have the same seniority date, seniority shall be determined by the alphabetical order of the last names they bore on the date of last hire.

#### Section 5 - Seniority Computation

All employees covered by this Agreement shall have their seniority calculated based on date of hire.

# Section 6 - Loss of Seniority

An employee covered by this Agreement shall be removed from the seniority list if:

- A. The employee resigns, retires, or dies;
- B. The employee is discharged and the discharge is not reversed;
- C. The employee is absent for three (3) consecutive days without notifying the Facility;
- D. If the employee does not return to work when recalled to work following a layoff (See Section 8);
- E. The employee does not return to work following authorized sick leave or leave of absence;
- F. The employee is not able or fails to perform assigned duties of employment for a period of five hundred twenty (520) consecutive work days. Any employee now receiving Workers Compensation including Mary Jacobson shall not have her seniority adversely affected by this provision.

# Section 7 - Seniority Lavoffs

When it becomes necessary to reduce the work force, the following procedure shall be followed:

- A. Probationary Probationary employees covered by this Agreement are to be laid off first.
- B. Thereafter, employees covered by this Agreement with seniority status will be laid off starting at the bottom of the seniority list (those with less seniority). Employees that are to be laid off shall receive seven (7) calendar days notice prior to layoff. The Union shall be notified at the same time. Notice of layoff shall be in-writing.

# Section 8 - Seniority - Recall from Layoff

All employees covered by this Agreement shall be recalled to work following a layoff starting at the top of the seniority list (those with the most seniority). Notice of recall may be given in person, by telegram, or by telephone or by certified mail. If notice is by telephone it shall also be confirmed by certified mail. Any employee who has been notified to return to work following layoff that does not return within seven (7) calendar days shall be removed from the seniority list. If an LPN/GPNs failure to return to work is due to illness or injury or other serious reasons beyond his control, he may retain his seniority if he has notified the Facility's Director of Nurses or Administrator of such reasons prior to his deadline for returning to work. The Facility may require substantiation of the reason given by the LPN/GPN.

## Section 9 - Seniority - Charge LPN

A charge LPN shall be scheduled on the basis of seniority and ability to do the work, unless rescinded, in writing, by the individual LPN; seniority shall be based on the number of years worked as an LPN at the Facility.

# ARTICLE VI - HOURS OF WORK AND WAGE RATES

# Section 1 - Hours of Work

The hours of work set forth hereinafter are those which an employee covered by this Agreement will normally work.

- <u>The regular work week</u> The regular work week shall normally be forty (40) hours. (32 hours or less for part-time LPN/GPNs)
- B. <u>The regular work day</u> The regular work day shall consist of eight (8) hours within a full day, the full day being from 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 a.m.
- C. <u>The standard work week</u> The standard work week shall begin at 7:00 a.m. on Sunday and end 7:00 a.m. the following Sunday. The week shall normally consist of five (5) work days.
- D. <u>Lunch Period Coffee Break</u> All employees covered by this Agreement shall have thirty (30) minutes off for lunch in the eight (8) hour work day and fifteen (15) minutes off for a "coffee break" during the first and second half of the eight (8) hour shift.

# E. <u>The regular work shifts</u> 1. The first shift is any shift that regularly starts on or after 6:45 a.m.

- 2. The second shift is any shift that regularly starts on or after 2:45 p.m.
- 3. The third shift is any shift that regularly starts on or after 10:45 p.m. (It is mutually agreed that patient care must be provided on a continuous basis, therefore, LPN/GPNs will continue the practice of reporting ahead of the regular shift so that the LPN/GPN from the off-going shift may pass on pertinent information regarding the patients.)

- F. A minimum of sixteen (16) hours shall be granted between shifts except in the case of an emergency and when agreed upon by the Facility and the LPN/GPN.
- G. The parties agree to the scheduling of LPN/GPNs for every third weekend off.

An LPN/GPN committee shall be formed in the event of problems in this regard to meet with the Director of Nursing to work towards the resolution of these problems.

H. The employer agrees to schedule full-time employees on permanent shifts by seniority, with the exception that both the employer and union recognize that one of the full-time employees shall be scheduled on all three (3) shifts (swing shift).

# I. <u>LPN's covering for LPN's</u>

To assure compliance with the minimum staffing requirements within the Facility, as outlined in the State of Michigan's Nursing Home Rules and Regulations, an LPN will work a second consecutive shift in order to cover for its own people by following the procedure as stated below:

- a. Available (those not scheduled for the particular shift coverage is being sought) part-timers are to be notified (an attempt should be made), as to whether or not they would be willing to come in and work the shift.
- b. If there is no favorable response, then those available (those not scheduled for the particular shift coverage is being sought) full-timers will be notified (an attempt should be made), as to whether or not they would be willing to come in and work the shift. Since this would warrant overtime pay this procedure would be followed by seniority.
- c. If no favorable response is received from a or b above, then the LPN's on the prior shift for which coverage is being sought would be requested to work a second consecutive shift or a part thereof. This request would be made on a seniority basis with the least senior LPN(s) being required to work the second shift or its part thereof, providing that all other above attempts to cover the shift have failed.

LPN's will cover only for other LPN's and not for nursing assistants or Rns.

# Section 2 - Wage Rates

A. Effective October 1, 1992, the following hourly rates will be in effect for all employees covered by this Agreement:

Starting	After 6 Months	After 5 Years
\$9.27	\$9.47	\$9.62

Effective July 1, 1993, the following hourly rates will be in effect for all employees covered by this Agreement:

Starting	After 6 Months	After 5 Years
\$9.73	\$9.93	\$10.08

- B. Starting wage of a GPN shall be fifteen cents (\$.15) per hour less than the LPN starting wage, only if such GPN has been issued a temporary permit prior to receiving a bona fide license.
- C. All LPNs employed by the Facility shall be licensed by the State of Michigan to qualify for LPN wages. A copy of the license and each renewal shall be on file with the Business Office.

#### ARTICLE VII - WAGE SUPPLEMENTS

#### Section 1 - Eligibility

- A. A full-time LPN/GPN is entitled to all wage supplements and benefits set forth in this Article.
- B. A part-time LPN/GPN is entitled only to those wage supplements and fringe benefits specifically enumerated in this section.
- C. Full-time and part-time status will be determined by the Facility with concurrence of the LPN/GPN at the time of hire or at any time during employment. A change from part-time to full-time or from full-time to part-time shall be done in writing with a copy to the Union.

### Section 2 - Sick Leave with Pay

- A. <u>A full-time LPN/GPN shall accumulate 3.7 sick leave hours per pay period (every two weeks) not to exceed 96.2 hours per year with a maximum accumulation of 800 hours.</u>
- B. Unused sick leave hours will be paid to the LPN/GPN upon resignation with proper notice (See Article IX, Section 9).
- C. Unused sick leave hours will be paid to the beneficiary of the LPN/GPN upon the death of the LPN/GPN.
- D. The hourly base rate of pay for the LPN/GPN on the last day worked will be used to calculate the amount due in the two preceding items (B and C) of Section 2, Article VII and paragraph G. of this Article.
- E. An LPN/GPN shall accrue sick leave days while on paid sick leave.
- F. Sick leave may be used for illness of the LPN/GPN, illness of a member of the LPN/GPN household when living under the same roof as the LPN/GPN and for medical and dental appointments.
- G. An LPN/GPN may maintain four hundred (400) hours credit and receive one-half (1/2) pay for any unused sick hours above and beyond the four hundred (400) hours at the end of each year of continuous employment. Payment shall be made the first pay day in January of the following year.
- H. Each LPN/GPN shall complete and sign a "Sickness Affidavit" provided by the Facility specifying the reason for absence.
- I. The Facility may require an LPN/GPN making excessive claims for paid sick leave to submit to a physical examination to be performed by the LPN/GPN's family physician who will determine physical ability to perform the duties of an LPN/GPN.
- J. The LPN/GPN shall inform his immediate supervisor at least two (2) hours in advance of his scheduled shift on the afternoon and evening shifts or one (1) hour in advance on the day shift if unable to come to work, unless an emergency arises.
- K. An LPN/GPN who is absent for three (3) consecutive scheduled shifts or more shall present the Facility with medical certificate or an adequate reason for such absence upon request of the employer.
- L. Sick leave shall be taken on a five (5) workday basis, holidays falling with a period of sick days shall not be counted as workdays.

- M. Sick leave shall not accrue during a leave of absence without pay.
- N. LPN/GPNs shall not be entitled to use sick leave until completion of thirty (30) days of continuous full-time service except in the case of injury incurred in the line of duty.
- O. A sick leave day will be paid to an LPN/GPN who becomes ill and leaves the Facility after reporting for duty and has worked four (4) hours or less; if over four (4) hours the actual hours worked shall be paid.
- P. "A part-time LPN/GPN shall receive pro-rated sick days on the following basis: Hours worked/2080 x full-time equivalent. These sick days are to be paid to the part-time LPN/GPN in July as computed using the payroll ending date which includes June 30."

# Section 3 - Holidays

- A. Full-time employees are entitled to the following holidays:
  - 1. New Year's Day
  - 2. Memorial Day
  - 3. Thanksgiving Day
  - 4. Independence Day
  - 5. Labor Day
  - 6. Christmas Day
  - 7. Easter Sunday
  - 8. Birthday
  - "(a) Part-time employees are entitled to have their birthday as a holiday. The birthday holiday shall be paid on a pro-rata basis based on hours worked divided by 2080 multiplied by 8 hours. This shall be computed on a July 1 to June 30 period of each year."
- B. LPN/GPNs will be scheduled off duty on their birthday holiday as an additional off-day in the pay period.
- C. Personnel will be scheduled to have every other holiday off except Christmas and New Year's which will be scheduled by posting.

In the event of a problem that may affect the scheduling, the LPN/GPN committee shall meet with the Director of Nursing Services to work toward resolution of the problem.

- D. Any LPN/GPN scheduled and working on a holiday shall be paid at time and one-half for hours worked on the holiday plus pay for the holiday. For the purpose of computing hours worked on the holiday, the shift starting at 11:00 p.m. on the day before the holiday shall be considered the first shift.
- E. An employee must work the entirety of his last scheduled shift before the holiday, the entirety of his first scheduled shift following the holiday and the entirety of the holiday if he is scheduled to work on the holiday, in order to be eligible for holiday pay, unless emergency conditions arise beyond the LPN/GPN's control which are for reasons other than medical (sickness). No provision of this Agreement shall be used to mitigate or alter the effect of this section.
- F. (a) Full-time LPN/GPN's shall be entitled to three (3) personal leave days per year upon giving twenty-four (24) hours advance notice. <u>Personal leave days will not be granted to LPN/GPN's scheduled to work on a holiday</u>. It is further agreed that of the three (3) personal leave days provided, two (2) of those days will be taken in eight (8) hour increments and the other one (1) personal leave day can be taken in minimum increments of two (2) hours.

# Section 4 - Longevity

- A. Effective October 1, 1992, longevity pay will be granted to permanent full-time LPN/GPNs as follows:
  - 1. An LPN/GPN having completed five (5) years of full-time employment shall receive an additional sixteen dollars (\$16.00) per month.
  - 2. An LPN/GPN having completed ten (10) years of full-time service shall receive an additional five dollars (\$5.00) per month, i.e. twenty-one dollars (\$21.00) per month.
  - 3. An LPN/GPN having completed fifteen (15) years of service shall receive an additional five dollars (\$5.00) per month, i.e. twenty-six dollars (\$26.00) per month.
  - 4. An LPN/GPN having completed twenty (20) years of service shall receive an additional five dollars (\$5.00) per month, i.e. thirty-one dollars (\$31.00) per month.
- B. Longevity pay will be determined as of October 1st of each year and will be paid in the first pay period of December of the same year.
- C. An LPN/GPN not completing a full year will be paid for the number of months completed.

D. "Part-time LPN/GPNs shall receive pro-rated longevity pay on the following basis: Hours worked/2080 x regular full-time equivalent."

# Section 5 - Retirement Income

The retirement income plan shall be Municipal Employees Retirement System Plan C-1. All applicable requirements of Municipal Employees Retirement System shall be adhered to. Effective October 1, 1988, employee contribution to the plan will be 2%. The Employer will pay all additional cost.

The Employer will implement and make available, to all employees covered by this Agreement, an early retirement plan (F-55/25).

# Section 6 - Court Duty

- A. An LPN/GPN who serves on jury duty on a scheduled work day shall be paid the difference between the pay for that shift and the amount paid for jury duty.
- B. An LPN/GPN who is subpoenaed on a Facility related case shall be paid at his regular rate for all hours spent in court, and shall be made whole for any time lost from work.

# Section 7 - Workers Compensation

- A. Each employee shall be covered by the applicable Michigan Disability Compensation Laws. Any employee now receiving Workers' Compensation weekly benefits and supplementary income from the Employer as of July 1, 1987 shall not have supplementary income discontinued so long as the employee continuously remains eligible for Worker's Disability Compensation Act Benefits. Such supplementary benefit eligibility shall terminate as of the time such employee becomes ineligible for Workers' Compensation weekly benefits.
- B. An LPN/GPN who sustains a compensable work-related illness or injury shall accrue all benefits for a period of six (6) months beginning the first day of the month following the last day worked.
- C. From the first day of the seventh month on, the Facility will provide Health Insurance for the LPN/GPNs. All other benefits will terminate.

# Section 8 - Health, Dental & Optical Insurance

A. After one (1) month of employment, all full-time LPN/GPNs shall be covered by health insurance, Blue Cross/Blue Shield (DRI-275) MVF-1, D45NM, ML and Master Medical Option II.

- (1) Relative to the DRI-275 program, LPN/GPN's hired prior to January 1, 1993, will have the deductible (\$275.00 for one member or \$550.00 for entire family, per calendar year) paid by the Employer; LPN/GPN's hired after December 31, 1992, will be responsible for payment of the deductible (\$275.00 for one member or \$550.00 for entire family, per calendar year) under the DRI-275 program.
- (2) Providing benefits remain equal and unaffected to the employee, the Facility is authorized to seek health insurance or work with its present health insurance carrier in an effort to reduce or contain cost. Adoption of any changes initiated by the Employer with its present health insurance carrier or with another health insurance provider must be by mutual agreement of the Union and the Facility, in order to assure the benefits provided are equal.
- B. (1) The Employer shall provide Blue Cross/Blue Shield \$3.00 Co-Pay Prescription Drug Rider.
  - (2) Effective January 1, 1989, the Employer will add pre-determination PRE 100/20 to the present plan.
- C. The Employer agrees to continue the current Dental Plan.
- D. The Employer agrees to continue the current Optical Plan.
- E. After one (1) month of employment, the Facility shall pay fifty percent (50%) of the monthly insurance premium for all part-time LPN/GPNs who elect to enroll in the Plan.
- F. Effective January 1, 1989, all LPN/GPNs may also insure dependents under the group health insurance plan. The premium for this coverage shall be divided in the following manner: Employer portion twenty-five percent (25%), employee portion seventy-five percent (75%). The employee portion will be deducted from the employee's paycheck.
- G. In the event of a leave of absence for other than illness or injury of a full-time LPN/GPN, the Facility will pay the health insurance premium for the full month following commencement of the leave of absence. If the LPN/GPN wishes to continue coverage from thereon, the premium shall be paid monthly by the LPN/GPN.
- H. In the event of leave of absence for illness or injury of a full-time LPN/GPN, the Facility shall continue to pay the premium for health insurance.

-12-

- I. All LPN/GPNs shall be covered by the Facility with \$2,500 Term Life Insurance at no cost to the employee.
- J. Hospitalization insurance shall be provided and paid by the Facility for all employees retiring at age sixty-two (62) or later to age sixty-five (65) with at least ten (10) years of Facility service.

# Section 9 - Shift Premium

- A. <u>Effective July 1, 1987, shift premium will be thirty-five cents (\$.35) per hour for the three o'clock (3:00) p.m. to eleven o'clock (11:00) p.m. shift and forty cents (\$.40) per hour for the eleven o'clock (11:00) p.m. to seven o'clock (7:00) a.m. shift.</u>
- B. Shift premium shall not be paid for sick leave, vacation or unworked holidays.

# Section 10 - Additional Compensation

Effective July 1, 1986

Nurses shall receive additional compensation of one dollar and ten cents (\$1.10) per hour for working as hospital charge.

# Section 11 - Vacations

- A. Full-time LPN/GPNs are entitled to annual leave pay of eight (8) hours each month to a limit of ninety-six (96) work hours annually excluding weekends and holidays.
- B. After four (4) years of full-time service, a full-time LPN/GPN is entitled to ten (10) hours per month, one hundred twenty (120) work hours annually.
- C. After nine (9) years of full-time service, a full-time LPN/GPN is entitled to twelve (12) hours per month, one hundred forty-four (144) work hours annually.
- D. After fourteen (14) years of full-time service, a full-time LPN/GPN is entitled to fourteen (14) hours per month, one hundred sixty-eight (168) work hours annually.
- E. After nineteen (19) years of service, a full-time LPN/GPN is entitled to two (2) additional days of vacation annually.
- F. Vacation time cannot be used by an LPN/GPN until he has completed twelve (12) months of service.
- G. All vacations must be taken during the year following accrual or be forfeited.

- H. If an LPN/GPN cannot take vacation in the year following accrual because of Facility work requirements, payment for the days accrued at the LPN/GPN base rate will be made on the last pay day in December of the year following accrual.
- I. Vacation request submitted by March 15th will be acted upon by May 15th and scheduled on a seniority basis. Vacation requests received after March 15th will be scheduled according to seniority but on the basis of weeks that are available.
- J. Vacations will be scheduled in accordance with Section 11, Subsection I. at such times during the year as are suitable considering both the request of the LPN/GPN and the efficient operation of the Facility.
- K. Vacations may be taken in one (1) or more eight (8) hour increments if notification is received by the first of the month prior to the desired vacation days.
- L. When a holiday as defined in Article VII, Section 3, Subsection A, falls within the LPN/GPNs scheduled vacation, the vacation shall be extended one (1) day.
- M. With the exception of Article VII, Section 11, Subsection H and N, payments in lieu of vacation will not be made to full-time LPN/GPNs.
- N. If an LPN/GPN becomes ill or is injured and is under the care of a licensed physician during his vacation, the vacation will be rescheduled upon presentation to the Facility of written certification of illness or injury signed by the attending physician. If the illness or injury causes incapacity for the balance of the year, payment will be made for the balance of the vacation at the LPN/GPNs hourly rate at the start of vacation.
- O. If an LPN/GPN retires, resigns in accordance with Article IX, Section 9, Subsection A, or dies, the accrued vacation due on the date of retirement, resignation or death will be paid to him or his beneficiary at the hourly rate at the time of retirement, resignation or death.
- P. A part-time LPN/GPN shall receive pro-rated vacation days on the following basis: Hours worked/2080 x full-time equivalent. These vacation days are to be paid to the part-time LPN/GPN in July as computed using the payroll period ending date which includes June 30.
- Q. When a leave of absence is taken for one (1) year or longer, all accrued vacation hours will be paid on the first pay day after the leave of absence begins.

# Section 12 - Leave of Absence

A leave of absence after one (1) year of continuous full-time service for a period not to exceed one (1) year will be granted for the following:

- A. To serve as an elected or appointed Union official.
- B. Illness
  - 1. The LPN/GPN shall be granted illness leave up to one (1) full year if he has a written certification from his attending physician that he is physically or mentally unable to perform the work in his classification.
  - 2. The LPN/GPN shall be granted illness leave up to one (1) year for prolonged illness in his immediate family (husband, wife, son, daughter, mother, father) upon presentation of written statement from the attending physician certifying the illness.
  - For the first six (6) months the LPN/GPN is on leave of absence due to his illness or illness in the immediate family, he shall accrue seniority. After six (6) months he shall retain seniority but shall not accrue any additional seniority.
  - 4. Before returning to work, the employee must present an affidavit from employee's physician stating her fitness to return to her job and continue with employee's normal function.
- C. Educational Leave

Educational leave shall be granted for a period not to exceed one (1) year if the LPN/GPN is going to further his education in the field of nursing.

- D. Unless otherwise stated in this section the LPN/GPN on leave of absence shall accrue seniority and retain seniority and be returned to the first available opening in their classification.
- E. It shall be the LPN/GPN's responsibility to keep the Facility advised of his status while on leave of absence.
- F. Military Leave

The Facility shall abide by The Selective Service Act and its judicial interpretations with respect to leave of absence for Military and National Guard service.

# G. Special Cases

Request for leave of absence for reasons not specifically covered in the preceding shall be reviewed by the Administrator and granted only on his authority.

# Section 13 - Funeral Leave

A full-time LPN/GPN shall be allowed twenty-four (24) paid scheduled work hours as funeral leave (not to be deducted from sick leave) for death in the immediate family (husband, wife, mother, father, mother-in-law, father-in-law, brother, sister, son, daughter, grandparents, grandchildren). An LPN/GPN selected to be pallbearer for a deceased person shall be allowed one (1) funeral leave day if scheduled to work on the day of the funeral. The LPN/GPN shall be allowed sixteen (16) sick hours for travel to a funeral that is 150 miles or more from the LPN/GPN's place of residence if the funeral falls into one of the categories described in this section. Sixteen (16) funeral leave hours will be granted for the death of son-in-law, daughter-in-law, sister-in-law, brother-in-law. Eight (8) funeral leave hours will be granted for the death of an employee's aunt or uncle. Funeral time must be taken during the time of the funeral.

# Section 14 - Uniform Allowance

All full-time LPN/GPN's after one (1) year of full-time employment shall receive a one hundred and ten dollar (\$110.00) uniform allowance which is to be paid during the month of September, as computed using the payroll period ending date which includes August 31st. Part-time LPN/GPN's shall receive a pro-rated uniform allowance using the following formula: Hours worked/2080 x full-time equivalent.

#### Section 15 - Overtime

Overtime (time and one-half) shall be paid for all hours worked over eight (8) in one (1) day and for all hours worked in excess of eighty (80) in a two week period or over forty (40) per week. An LPN/GPN required to work beyond their scheduled shift in excess of one-half (1/2) hour shall receive a minimum of two (2) hours pay.

#### Section 16 - Physical Examinations

Physical examinations shall be arranged and paid for by the facility for all LPN/GPNs prior to employment and annually thereafter. The examination shall include but not be limited to:

- A. Post-employment
  - 1. Chest and Back X-Rays
  - 2. Urinalysis

- Blood Kahn
   Blood Pressure
- -16-

# B. Annually

- 1. Chest X-Ray if Mono-Vac reads positive
- 2. Blood Pressure

# Section 17 - Employee Meals

Cost to LPN/GPN shall be One Dollar and Seventy Five Cents (\$1.75) for the duration of this Agreement, for meals.

Employees who work two (2) consecutive shifts shall receive their meal, on the second shift, free of charge. An employee who works 3:00 p.m. - 11:00 p.m. as their normal shift and then is required to work at least four (4) hours into the 11:00 p.m. - 7:00 a.m. shift, will be granted a meal ticket for one (1) meal which is to be utilized by the employee's next day or afternoon shift worked.

# ARTICLE VIII - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

# Section 1 - Definition of a Grievance

A grievance is defined as a claim, reasonably and sensibly founded, of a violation of this Agreement. Any grievance shall refer to the provision or provisions of the Agreement alleged to have been violated and shall adequately set forth the facts pertaining to alleged violations.

# Section 2 - Rules of Grievance Procedure

- A. The Employer will answer in writing any grievance presented to it in writing by the Union.
- B. The grievance must be presented by the delegate to his immediate supervisor within fifteen (15) calendar days of its occurrence.
- C. Any grievance not answered within the time limits by the Employer shall be deemed settled on the basis of the Union's original demand.
- D. Any grievance decision not answered within the time limits by the union shall be deemed settled on the basis of the employer's last answer.
- E. A grievance may be withdrawn without prejudice, and if so withdrawn, all financial liabilities shall be canceled. If the grievance is reinstated, the financial liability shall date only from the time of reinstatement. If the grievance is not reinstated within one month from the date of withdrawal the grievance shall not be reconsidered. Where one or more grievances involve a similar issue, those grievances may be

withdrawn without prejudice pending the disposition of the appeal of a representative case. In such event, a withdrawal without prejudice shall not affect financial liability.

- F. After a case has been referred to the American Arbitration Association, the case may not be withdrawn by either party except by mutual consent.
- G. A grievance shall be defined as a violation of this Agreement as it applies to employees. Any grievance shall refer to the provision or provisions of this Agreement alleged to have been violated and shall adequately set forth the facts concerning alleged violation.
- H. For the purpose of the grievance procedure, Saturday, Sunday, and Holidays shall not be counted.
- I. Delegate(s) are the bargaining unit person(s) selected by the bargaining unit to represent the bargaining unit.

## Section 3 - Grievance Procedure

Any LPN/GPN having a grievance as defined in Section I shall present it to the Employer as follows:

#### Step 1:

- (a) If an employee believes he has a grievance, he shall discuss the grievance with the delegate.
- (b) The delegate shall discuss the grievance with the appropriate immediate supervisor.
- (c) If the matter is thereby not disposed of within four (4) calendar days, it shall be submitted in written form by the delegate to the appropriate supervisor.
- (d) The appropriate supervisor shall answer the grievance within four (4) calendar days.

#### <u>Step 2</u>:

If the grievance remains unsettled, it shall be presented by the chapter chairperson in writing to the Administrator within seven (7) calendar days after the response of Step 1 is due. The Administrator shall respond in writing to the chapter chairperson within seven (7) calendar days.

#### <u>Step 3:</u>

- (a) If the answer at Step 2 is not deemed to be satisfactory, and the Union wishes to carry it further, it shall within thirty (30) calendar days from the date of the Employer's last answer at Step 2, meet with the Employer for the purpose of attempting to settle the grievance, and if unable to do so, to select an arbitrator. In the event they cannot agree on an arbitrator within five (5) calendar days from the meeting called for that purpose, then an arbitrator shall be selected by the American Arbitration Association in accordance with their rules and procedures.
- (b) There shall be no appeal from any arbitrator's decision. Each such decision shall be final and binding on the Union and its members, the employee or employees involved, and the Employer. The arbitrator shall make his judgment based on the express terms of this Agreement, and shall have no authority to add to or subtract from any of its terms. Expenses for the arbitrator shall be shared equally between the Employer and the Union.

## ARTICLE IX - MISCELLANEOUS

#### Section 1 - Strikes - Work Interruptions

The parties to the Agreement mutually agree that the services performed by the LPN/GPN covered by this Agreement are essential to the public health, safety and welfare. The Association therefore agrees that no strike of any kind shall be caused or sanctioned by the Union.

### Section 2 - Bulletin Boards

The Facility shall provide a bulletin board which may be used by the Union for the posting of notices pertaining to recreational and social events, Union elections and the results of those elections and notices of meetings.

# Section 3 - Pronouns - Use of

Whenever reference is made in this Agreement to the male pronoun he, him, his, etc, it is intended and it shall be deemed to include reference to the equivalent female pronoun she, her, hers, etc.

### Section 4 - Successor Clause

This Agreement shall be binding upon the Iron County Board of Social Services and its successors and personnel and the Union and its members.

# Section 5 - Disciplinary Action, Discharge, Suspension

Disciplinary actions or measures shall include but not be limited to that action outlined in the Code of Conduct prepared by the Facility and put into effect on November 1, 1973, revised January 1, 1984, January 26, 1987 & January 22, 1990. Reprimand (other than oral), suspension and discharge, shall be in writing of which a copy shall be made available to the Union.

If the disciplinary action cannot be resolved by discussion it may be presented through the regular grievance procedure as outline in this Agreement.

Whenever the Facility feels the disciplinary action should result in suspension from employment or discharge, such action shall be taken by the Administrator only, or the Personnel Director.

The Union shall be notified in writing that the LPN/GPN has been suspended and subject to discharge. The notification shall contain all pertinent information as to the reason for such action. The Union shall have the right to take action at the third (3rd) step of the Grievance Procedure through the arbitration step if deemed necessary. Any LPN/GPN found to be unjustly discharged or suspended shall be reinstated with full compensation for all lost time with full restoration of all other rights and conditions of employment.

# Section 6 - Disciplinary Action, Discharge, Suspension

Reprimanding an LPN/GPN shall be done privately without knowledge of fellow employees or the public.

# Section 7 - Anti-Discrimination

The Facility and the Union agree that all provisions of this Agreement shall be applied to all LPN/GPNs covered hereby, without regard to race, creed, national origin, marital status, sex or political or religious affiliation.

# Section 8 - Discharge

Any LPN/GPN covered by this Agreement who is discharged for cause shall forfeit all accumulated benefits including but not limited to sick leave, vacation, longevity and uniform allowance unless such discharge is subsequently revoked or modified through the established grievance procedure.

# Section 9 - Resignation

(a) An LPN/GPN shall give the Facility two (2) weeks written notice of resignation. Failure to do so without proper reason will result in forfeiture of all accrued benefits including, but not limited to, vacation, longevity, sick pay and uniform allowance. If an LPN/GPN is absent without permission or notification for three (3) consecutive scheduled work days, the LPN/GPN will be considered as having abandoned his position and resigned without notice unless later proven that the LPN/GPN was incapacitated and unable to notify the Facility.

(b) An LPN/GPN shall be removed from the seniority list upon resignation. If rehired at a later date seniority and accrual of benefits shall begin from date of rehire and no credit given for previous service.

# Section 10 - Meetings

A meeting with the Director of Nurses and the LPN/GPNs covered by this Agreement shall be scheduled at least once (1) each month with the time of the meeting to be left up to the discretion of the Director of Nursing.

#### Section 11 - Work Schedule

The work schedule will be arranged to meet schooling when attending "Continuing Education Programs" for LPN/GPNs.

### Section 12 - Workshop

When attendance at a "workshop" is authorized by the Facility the LPN/GPN shall be paid wages for the day and be reimbursed for registration fees. The LPN/GPN shall submit a written report regarding the information discussed at the "workshop" within seven (7) days of attendance.

# ARTICLE X - NEGOTIATIONS PROCEDURES

It is contemplated that terms and conditions of employment provided in this Agreement shall remain in effect by mutual agreement in writing by both parties. It is recognized that matters may from time to time arise of vital concern to the parties which have not been fully/adequately negotiated between them. It is in the best interest of all concerned that the opportunity for the mutual discussion of such matters be provided. The parties will accordingly cooperate in arranging meetings between the Facility Administrator and the Union Representatives. Both parties will furnish necessary information needed to resolve such matters. If the parties fail to reach agreement in such negotiation, either party may invoke the mediation machinery of the State Labor Mediation Board to take any lawful measures it may deem appropriate.

# **ARTICLE XI - TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION**

- Α. This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect until June 30, 1994.
- If either party desires to amend and/or terminate this Agreement it shall sixty (60) B. days prior to the above termination date give written notice of same.
- If neither party shall give notice, this Agreement shall continue in effect from year C. to year thereafter subject to notice of termination or amendment by either party sixty (60) days prior to the current year's termination date.
- If notice has been given in accordance with the preceding paragraphs this Agreement D. may be terminated by either party on ten (10) days written notice of termination.
- E. Any amendment that the parties may agree upon shall become part of this Agreement without changing or modifying any other terms of this Agreement unless the Amendment specifically outlines such change.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE EXECUTED THIS AGREEMENT BY THEIR DULY AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES THIS , 1992. DAY OF

MICHIGAN COUNCIL OF NURSES AND HEALTH CARE PROFESSIONALS, SEIU LOCAL 79, AFL-CIO

aut

PAUL J. POLICICCHIO PRESIDENT

DAN MALONE BUSINESS REPRESENTATIVE

DOROTHY BARNET

STEVE

IRON COUNTY MEDICAL CARE FACILITY

GAGN

-22-

# THE FOLLOWING LETTER IS NOT PART OF THE COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT

**MEMORANDUM:** 

TO: ALL NURSING PERSONNEL

SUBJECT: Staffing Requirements

Effective immediately, in order to stay within compliance of the State of Michigan's Nursing Home Rules and Regulations Staffing Requirements, the following guidelines will be adhered to:

<u>11-7 Shift</u> - There will be no change in the present staffing of this shift. We are required by law to schedule and maintain a work force of 8 nursing personnel - 2 will be licensed personnel and 6 will be Nurses Assistants.

<u>3-11 Shift</u> - Our present scheduling: 3 professionals and 9 Nursing Assistants. However, should a Nurse Assistant call in absent on those days on which 9 are scheduled, that absentee shall not be replaced. Any number below 9 Nurse Assistants will be replaced. At no time will the number of nursing personnel be permitted to go below 10 (2 professionals and 8 N.A.s).

<u>7-3 Shift</u> - Our present scheduling is: 1 R.N. (federal requirements), 3 LPNs, and 16 Nurse Assistants. On weekends and holidays, 14 Nurse Assistants are scheduled. If a Nurse Assistant calls in absent, the absentee shall not be replaced. If more than 1 Nurse Assistant is absent, then replacements must be made except for 1. At no time will the number of nursing personnel be permitted to go below 14 (1 RN, 2 LPNs, 11 Nurse Assistants).

When the number of nursing personnel on a particular shift goes below the State of Michigan's minimum staffing requirements, then the following emergency procedure will be used to assure minimum staffing compliance:

- a. The charge nurse will not be permitted to leave their tour of duty until it is determined that the on-coming shift has met minimal staffing requirements. If the above mentioned minimum requirements are not met then the following steps should be taken.
  - 1. Call available part-time employees to come in and work the shift (including professionals and Nursing Assistants as needed per the above specified requirements).

2. If there are no available nursing personnel willing to come in to work, then the present staff on duty would be asked if they would be willing to work a double shift; or a fraction thereof. If there are no interested staff members willing to work the double shift, then the least senior employee or employees will be mandated to work the extra shift.

Not to be included in the above minimum staffing requirements are the following:

- a. Ward Clerk
- b. Diversional Therapy personnel
- c. Physical Therapy Aide
- d. Central Supply Clerk

The Nursing Assistant/Transport Vehicle person can only be counted when providing direct hands-on care.

The working of a fraction of a shift can only be authorized by the Director of Nursing or Administrator.

Chester E. Pintarelli Administrator

#### LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING

#### IRON COUNTY MEDICAL CARE FACILITY

Contract Extension

The Iron County Medical Care Facility and SEIU Local 79 have agreed as follows:

- Extend the current Agreement one (1) calendar year so that it expires on June 30, 1996.
- 2. Increase wages as follows:

1

Nurses at the start level will receive a 52¢ increase on February 17, 1995.

Nurses at the 6-month level will receive a 53¢ increase on February 23, 1995.

Nurses at the 5-year level would receive a 54¢ increase on February 28, 1995.

3. All other terms or conditions would remain unchanged.

IRON COUNTY MEDICAL CARE FACILITY

CI

SERVICE EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAL UNION, LOCAL 79 AFL-CIO

in au

· minite a decide apr - Levici Vallec:

#### 06903(017)159780

#### Letter of Addendum

#### between

#### Michigan Council of Nurses & Health Care Professionals, SEIU, Local 79, AFL-CIO

#### and

#### Iron County Medical Care Facility

It is agreed to by both parties named above that the wage increase to be implemented effective January 9, 1994 to the Licensed Practical Nurses will be 42¢ an hour. Thus, the rates to be as follows:

Starting	After 6 Months	After 5 Years
\$10.15	\$10.35	\$10.50

It is further agreed that this contract shall be extended until June 30, 1995.

This Letter of Addendum is heretofore accepted by authority of the signatures affixed.

For: Michigan Council of Nurses and Health Care Professionals, SEIU, Local 79, AFL-CIO

Yache

For: Iron County Medical Care Facility

#### LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING

#### IRON COUNTY MEDICAL CARE FACILITY

Contract Extension

The Iron County Medical Care Facility and SEIU Local 79 have agreed as follows:

- Extend the current Agreement one (1) calendar year so that it expires on June 30, 1996.
- 2. Increase wages as follows:

Nurses at the start level will receive a 52¢ increase on February 17, 1995.

Nurses at the 6-month level will receive a 53¢ increase on February 23, 1995.

Nurses at the 5-year level would receive a 54¢ increase on February 28, 1995.

3. All other terms or conditions would remain unchanged.

IRON COUNTY MEDICAL CARE FACILITY

SERVICE EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAL UNION,/LOCAL 79/AFL-CIO an Aughthi 27, 11

06903(017)159780

# IRON COUNTY MEDICAL CARE FACILITY

# LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING

# **Contract Extension**

The Iron County Medical Care Facility and SEIU Local 79 have agreed as follows:

- 1, Extend the current Agreement one (1) calendar year so that it expires on June 30, 1997.
- 2. Increase all wage rates by forty-two cents (42¢) per hour, effective the first full payroll period after January 1, 1996.
- 3. All other terms or conditions would remain unchanged.

IRON COUNTY MEDICAL CARE FACILITY

SERVICE EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAL UNION, LOCAL 79, AFL-CIO

SADA

PAUL J. POLICICCHIO, President